
1



2



Flatonia City Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
July 8, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Present       Absent 
Mayor   Travis Seale    Council  Kevin Laney 
Mayor Pro Tem Ginny Sears 
Council  Allen Kocian 
   Josh Homan 
   Jeff Brazill 
City Manager  Ray Miller 
City Secretary  Jacqueline Ott 
Utility Director Jack Pavlas 
Fire Chief  Chris Swenning 
Police Chief   Lee Dick 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Seale called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Seale led the invocation and pledges.  
 
Citizen Participation  

1. Cindy Johnson spoke against the issue of short-term parking along East North Main Street. 
She is the owner of The Market. 
 

2. Paula Grahmann spoke in favor of the issue of short-term parking along East North Main 
Street. She is the owner of Your Hometown Pharmacy. Mrs. Grahmann is requesting 2-3 
designated spaces for the pharmacy’s customers.  

 
3. Mike Whitten spoke on the lease of the American Legion Post 94 building.  

 
Staff Reports 

1. Fire Chief Swenning presented his semiannual report. 
 
2. Police Chief Dick gave an update on the newly hired officers. 
 
3. Utility Director Pavlas gave an update on the street repairs. 
 
4. City Manager Miller updated the Council that the Dollar General lot has been mowed in 

its entirety. Councilman Kocian asked again about the former Napa building.  
 
5. City Manager Miller gave an update on the drainage study. Councilwoman Sears asked for 

clarification on the proposed TxDOT crosswalk installation at Highway 90 and Highway 
95. Mr. Miller said the project is still several years out but progress is being made on the 
planning portion.  

3



 
Consent Agenda 
Consider and take appropriate action on the following items: 

1. Minutes from the Regular City Council meeting held on June 10, 2025. 
2. Financial reports from June 2025.  
3. Hotel Occupancy Tax reports for Quarter 2 2025 from Flatonia Chamber of Commerce, 

Special Projects, and EA Arnim Archives and Museum. 
 
Councilman Homan moved, with a second from Councilman Kocian, to approve the consent 
agenda items. The vote was unanimous. Motion passed. 
 
Discussion Agenda 

1. After hearing opinions from the citizens directly affected by the proposed short-term 
parking, the Council directed City Manager Miller to look into all of the options available 
in order to reach an agreement that is fair to all business owners. The Council will 
deliberate this matter at a future meeting. 
 

New Business Agenda  
1. Mayor Seale expressed concern about destroying records from 2019-2020 in case the 

records are needed in an unforeseen circumstance. The Council decided to forgo approving 
the destruction list until October when several more boxes will be eligible for destruction.  

 
2. Mayor Pro Tem Sears moved, with a second from Councilman Kocian, to approve the 

proposed projects from the Parks Committee and proceed with the LCRA grant application. 
Councilman Brazill would like to choose as many projects as possible to maximize the full 
amount available. The Council would like to see prices for the proposed projects. Mayor 
Pro Tem Sears withdrew her motion, and the Council postponed the deliberation until the 
special Council meeting on July 22, 2025.  

 
3. Mayor Pro Tem Sears started the discussion to return ownership of the property to the 

American Legion. Councilmen Kocian and Brazill voiced their support on this suggestion. 
The Council heard the supporting opinion of members of the American Legion. 
Councilman Kocian, with a second from Mayor Pro Tem Sears to direct City Manager 
Miller to investigate the legality of transfer of the property, as well as the position of the 
American Legion on this matter, to be presented at the special Council meeting on July 22, 
2025. 

 
Adjournment 
Mayor Seale adjourned the meeting at 8:18 p.m. 
 
Signed                   ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________              _________________________ 
Travis Seale           Jacqueline Ott 
Mayor            City Secretary 

4



Flatonia City Council 
Special Called Meeting Minutes 

July 22, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Present       Absent 
Mayor Pro Tem Ginny Sears    Mayor   Travis Seale 
Council  Allen Kocian     Council  Kevin Laney 
   Josh Homan 
   Jeff Brazill 
City Manager  Ray Miller 
City Secretary  Jacqueline Ott 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Pro Tem Sears called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
Councilman Kocian led the invocation and pledges.  
 
Citizen Participation  
None 
 
Public Hearing 

1. Public hearing on the conditional use permit at 1025 East Old Spanish Trail for Michael 
and Michelle Lanni. Mrs. Lanni stated they want to find a solution to any missteps in the 
permitting process and hope to use their new business to benefit the community. 

 
Regular Session  

1. Councilman Kocian moved, with a second from Councilman Brazill, to approve the 
conditional use permit at 1025 East Old Spanish Trail for Michael and Michelle Lanni with 
the condition that the proper permits are pulled, the property is inspected by Bureau 
Veritas, and the understanding that any changes made to the property or the ownership will 
require a new permit application. The vote was unanimous. Motion passed.  

 
2. No action was taken to approve the food truck and market space proposal by Lindsey 

Ahrens. The proposal meets all ordinance requirements; therefore, the owner may proceed 
with the proposed plans as no Council approval is required.  

 
3. Councilman Homan moved, with a second from Councilman Kocian, to approve the 

submittal of a grant application to the LCRA Community Grant Program with the following 
projects listed by priority: install a bridge across the drainage creek, install shade coverings 
at the splashpad, and install shade coverings at the swimming pool. The vote was 
unanimous. Motion passed. 
 
 
 
 

5



Executive Session 
1. Mayor Pro Tem Sears entered the executive session at 6:59 p.m. as authorized by the Texas 

Government Code, Section 551.071 Consultation with an Attorney. The Council convened 
a closed session to discuss real property located at 302 East North Main Street.  

 
Regular Session (continued) 

4. Mayor Pro Tem Sears reconvened from the closed session at 7:20 p.m. No action was taken 
from the Executive Session item 1. 

 
Adjournment 
Mayor Pro Tem Sears adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 
Signed                   ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________              _________________________ 
Ginny Sears           Jacqueline Ott 
Mayor Pro Tem          City Secretary 

6



Flatonia City Council 
Special Called Meeting Minutes 

July 29, 2025, at 6:00 p.m. 
 

Present 
Mayor   Travis Seale 
Mayor Pro Tem Ginny Sears 
Council  Allen Kocian 
   Josh Homan 
   Kevin Laney 
   Jeff Brazill 
City Manager  Ray Miller 
City Secretary  Jacqueline Ott 
Utility Director Jack Pavlas 
Fire Chief  Chris Swenning 
Police Chief  Lee Dick 
 
Call to Order 
Mayor Seale called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Workshop Agenda 
The Council reviewed the general fund proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2026. 
 
Adjournment 
Mayor Seale adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. 
 
 
Signed                   ATTEST 
 
 
_________________________              _________________________ 
Travis Seale           Jacqueline Ott 
Mayor            City Secretary 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



 
FLATONIA FIRE & RESCUE 

           216 W North Main St, Flatonia, TX 78941  
 
 

July 2025 Monthly Report 
 

To:  Flatonia City Council 
 
From:  Flatonia Fire & Rescue 
 
Subject:  July 2025 Monthly Report 
 

 
Calls of Service: 
There were 14 calls for service in July, bringing the total to 94 calls from January to July, 
2025.  
 

● 4 grass fires 
● 4 EMS assist calls 
● 1 dumpster fire 
● 1 vehicle accident response 
● 1 smoke detection with no fire 
● 1 water leak attended to 
● 2 dispatched and canceled en route 

  
Department Training: 
The department trained on basic wildland fire suppression, focusing on different types of 
attacks based on terrain, manpower, and fire sources. 
 
 

90



 
 

July 2025 Monthly Report 
 
 
To:   Flatonia City Council 
 
From:   Flatonia Police Department  
 
Subject:  July Monthly Report   
 

Calls for Service:  

There were 338 calls for service for this month. 

 
Offense / Incident Report Activity: 

On July 16, 2025, Chief Dick and Fayette County EMS Medic-3 were notified of a female having a stroke. Chief Dick arrived 
on-scene with Medic-3 and entered the residence to find a female in medical distress. Chief Dick assisted moving the subject 
to a stretcher and assisting EMS until they departed the scene. 
 
On July 20, 2025, Sergeant Tunis was contacted by Fayette County Dispatch for report of two females fighting in front of a 
local business. Sergeant Tunis and Investigator Titus responded to the scene and separated the females. One female was 
placed in custody and the other was transported to the hospital by Fayette County EMS. Because of the rapid response of 
Sergeant Tunis, the victim’s injuries were less serious than they would have been, and the suspect was prevented from self-
harm. 
 
On July 27, 2025, the Flatonia Police Department was contacted by the Gonzales Police Department who requested 
assistance with an individual that resided in Flatonia but had active warrants in Gonzales County. Flatonia Officers Bellah 
and Amos and Sergeant Tunis met with the subject and convinced him to surrender peacefully. He was then transported to 
Fayette County Jail and transferred to Gonzales County 
 
On July 30, 2025, Officer Amos and Officer Grace observed an individual entering a Gas Station. Officer Amos recognized the 
individual from previous interactions and was aware that he had warrants for his arrest. The subject’s attempt to evade 
officers in the populated setting created public safety concerns that overrode the immediate need for arrest and additional 
charges have been filed on this subject. 
 
 
NO FURTHER DETAILED INFORMATION IS PUBLISHED DUE TO ON GOING INVESTIGATION OF CASES. 

Arrests and Pending Charges 

There were two custody arrests for the month of July.  

Traffic Contacts:   
91



All Flatonia Police Officers, including command staff, have conducted traffic control throughout the city and specifically in 
the areas of town that complaints have been received related to speeding and stop sign violations. Flatonia officers will 
continue to conduct stationery and mobile radar and observe traffic at intersections to address the traffic concerns.  

In-Service Training and Events: 

During the month of July, Officer Jason Bellah and Officer Nathan Grace continued training with their Field Training Officers 
(FTO’s), Officers Amos and Kalina.  
 
On July 7, 2025, Chief Dick met with representatives from the Tri-County Friends of the NRA who arrived at Flatonia PD to 
present a grant check. The grant was awarded for the purchase of two (2) patrol rifles with red dot optics. The rifles have 
been purchased and incorporated into the existing Patrol Rifle Program to help better protect the community. Present for 
the grant presentation were Dennis Brower, Craig Schulz, and Jeremy Stoever representing the NRA and City Manager Ray 
Miller, Chief Lee Dick, Sergeant Trey Tunis, Investigator Geneva Titus, Officer Billy Kalina, Officer Taylor Amos and Officer 
Jason Bellah representing the City of Flatonia.  
 
On July 8, 2025, Chief Dick and City Manager Raymond Miller traveled to the FISD Superintendent's Office to meet with 
Safety and Security Director Robin Branecky and Superintendent Chris Sodek.to discuss ongoing cooperative efforts 
between the Flatonia Police Department and FISD and events already scheduled with the pending start of school.  
 
On July 31, 2025, Officer Amos completed mandatory CJIS Security and Privacy: General Role training. This course is key to 
the human element of information security. The purpose of this certification is to make all users with authorized access to 
CJI aware of their individual responsibilities and expected behavior when accessing CJI and the systems which process CJI. 
 
 
 

July 
Type Number 

Agency Assist 10 
Accidents 4 
Animal Complaint 5 
Assault Causing B/I 1 
Burglary 1 
Child Custody 1 
Citizen Assist 3 
Civil Matter 6 
Close Patrol 223 
Criminal Mischief 1 
Damage to Property 1 
Disturbance 5 
Evading Arrest 2 
Follow up 1 92



 

 

  

Found Property 2 
Funeral Escort 1 
Hit and Run 1 
Incident Reports 15 
Information 1 
Inquest 1 
Ministerial Voucher 1 
Motorist Assist 3 
Noise Complaint 1 
Offense Reports 10  
Open Door 2 
Property Return 1 
School Patrol/Security 24 
Sex Offender Registry 2 
Suicidal Subject 1 
Suspicious 
Circumstances 1 
Suspicious Noise 1 
Suspicious Person 3 
Suspicious Vehicle 3 
Theft of Firearm 1 
Traffic Stops 50  
Traffic Control 25 
Traffic Hazard             2 
Warrant             1 
Walk In             2  
Welfare Check 3 
Total 422    

93



Utility Department Report 

7/1 

• Work on 4th St. 
• Replace arcing cut out behind Mike Steinhauser office. 

7/2 

• Chipping on Hwy 90 W. 
• Work on 4th St. 
• Meet with Befco about RR & US 90 bore 
• Haul sludge from reclaim tank @ water plant #3 to the sewer plant. 
• Flushing. 

7/3 

• Pull abandoned pole on 8th & Market. 
• Haul spoil from cemetery. 
• Work on 4th St.  (one side based in.  Street open for weekend) 
• Made sewer tap on Hackberry, north of Collins. 

7/7 

• Work on 4th St.  Cut out and haul off north side of the road.   

7/8  

• Work Orders 

7/9 

• Clean up pump houses 
• Trim Primary and chip limbs 

7/10  

• Trim Primary and chip limbs 
• Sewer plant by-pass 

7/11 

• Trim Primary and chip limbs 
• Water leak on 11th st ( 4” main  

7/13 

• C/O Transformer  Mica House 

7/14 

94



• Read Meters 

7/15 

• Read Meter 
• Sewer Plant with contractor 

7/16 

• Read Meters 
• Sewer Plant with contractor 
• Pickup limbs on 8th st 
• Fixed Backhoe tire 

 

7/17 

• Trim Primary on Hwy 95 
• Pickup limbs 

7/21 

• Work orders 
• Trim Primary on Hwy 95 

7/22 

• Trim Primary on Hwy 95 
• Repair pump on life station ( Collins ) 
• Repair sewer line 

7/23 

• Mark lines on Slaughterhouse Rd for County to push out trees and replace culvert. 
• Repair AC at the food pantry. 
• Meter rereads. 
• Tree trimming & chipping on Hwy 95 N. 
• Tank inspections on ground storage tanks. 

7/24 

• Work on 4th St. & 3rd St (Market to Penn) 
• Misc water work orders. 

7/25 

• Repair CT service @ the Legion Hall. 
• Work on compiling info for generator grant. 
• Hook up electric services for Steinhauser Law office. 

7/26 

95



• Filter @ water plant #3 dumping water.  Take filter off line. 

7/28 

• Check air relief valve on filter #1 @ water plant #3, put filter back on line. 
• Work on Market St. 
• Set stop signs @ Hackberry & 11th, & 7th & Converse. 

7/29 

• Work on Market St. 
• Trim tree limbs out of roadway on S. Converse 
• Patching. 

7/30 

• Work on Market St. 
• Patching. 

7/31 

• Begin laying base on Market St. 
• Repair water leak @ Civic Center.  (sidewalk crew) 
• Power outage on Fair Park Rd.  Replace line fuse.  (fried buzzard ). 

 

96



 
 
 
CODE COMPLIANCE OFFICE 
Araceli Hernandez, Code Compliance Official        
125 E. South Main St.      Phone: 361-865-3548 
PO Box 329       Email: code@ci.flatonia.tx.us 
Flatonia, TX 78941            

 
 
To: Flatonia City Council 
From: Araceli Mancilla DeHernandez 
Subject:  Monthly report 
Date: JULY 2025 
 
Compliance Report Summary 

•  Citizen Concerns/Complaints- 1 
•  Field Investigation Spots- 5 

Letters sent for: 
• Tall grass/weeds –4 
• Trash/debris –1 
• Buildings/structures –1 
• Junk vehicles –  
• 2nd notice  -  
• Zoning Ordinance-  
• Prohibited fowl-  
• Prohibited discharge - 

Notes: 
• There have been 2 filed closed successfully. 

•  Debris removal- 1 
•  Overgrown grass/weeds-  
•  Building moved/or demolish-  1 
•  Prohibited fowl-- 
•  Junk Vehicles-  

 

97



City Manager’s Report 
To: Mayor Seale & City Council 
CC: Staff 
From: Ray Miller, City Manager 
Date: August 12, 2025 

 
Planning and Zoning: 

a) The P&Z had a special meeting on July 21, 2025.  The need for the special meeting was to 
consider a Conditional Use Permit for 1025 East Old Spanish Trail. 

b) The P&Z held their regular Meeting on August 4, 2025 
c) Things that were discussed or action was taken on at the August 4, 2025 Meeting: 

1. Amend the “By-Laws” to hold regular scheduled meetings on the 1st Tuesday of the 
month at 6:00pm. 

2. Elected a new Chairperson – Susan Steinhauser 
3. Discussed Chapter 14A – Zoning – There were a few items that the Commissioners 

pointed out or wanted more clarification on.  Staff is looking into those items. 
4. Discussed or reviewed a possible Drainage Permit Ordinance.  As written, the draft 

drainage permit ordinance would require the construction of any structure, addition or 
impervious cover (driveways or concrete pads) in the amount of 900 sq.ft. or larger to 
provide a drainage plan that is stamped by a registered engineer.  Some comments were 
made by Staff and by the Commissioners regarding the draft ordinance.  Staff stated that 
it would come back with some examples from other cities in regard to drainage 
ordinances or requirements.  Just as a note, the City of Flatonia Code of Ordinances 
currently requires a drainage design to accommodate a 25-year rain event.  This is 
mainly applied to commercial or other non-residential development, unless the 
development is a new multi-lot residential subdivision that would require new streets, 
utilities and drainage.  Then the residential development would have to design to a 25-
year rain event.  The 25-year rain event requirement is not meant for what would be 
considered residential “in-fill” development or additions on existing legal or platted lots.  
Design to a 25-year or 50-year rain event is very typical and used in a lot of Texas Cities 
development regulations. 

d) Next P & Z meeting will be on Tuesday, September 2, 2025, at 6:00pm 
 

Economic Development: 
a) The last EDC meeting was held on Monday, June 16, 2025 at 6pm. 

a. The July meeting was cancelled. 
b) Next EDC Meeting will be on Thursday, August 21, at 6:00pm    

 
Code Enforcement: 

a) Araceli submitted a report. 
 

Road Construction:  
a) Jack and Steve will report.  

 
Utility Projects: 

a) Jack and Steve will report. 

98



 
Parks: 

a) The last Parks meeting was held on Wednesday, June 25, at 6 pm. 
b) The July Parks meeting was cancelled. 
c) The City received an update to the climbing wall on Thursday, July 10, 2025.  The estimated 

shipment date of the replacement parts should be 7/24/25.  Parts have been received, and 
Parks staff will work on adding the new parts. 

d) The next Parks meeting will be on August 27, 2025 at 6:00pm. 
 
Administration:  

a) Sludge Removal Project – Preconstruction Meeting was held Thursday, July 10, 2025 at 
11am.  Construction/Contract books were signed.  The city intends to start pumping water 
or bypass the sludge pond on Monday, July 14, 2025 (weather permitting).  Contractor will 
then start dewatering operation of the sludge to remove as much moisture as possible.  
Sludge removal should start 30 days after bypass and dewatering have started.  BEFCO 
Engineering and the City are working with the contractor to determine an actual start date 
for the removal to begin. 

b) Participated in a TEAMS meeting with Dell Technologies.  The City has a new account 
representative from Dell, Luke Leblanc.  He mainly wanted to introduce himself and asked 
questions about our computers, servers and technology just to get familiar with the City of 
Flatonia.  

c) We had an in-person visit with our representatives from Toshiba (copiers and printers) and 
a TEAMS call.  They provided some valuable information about their services, especially 
the ability to take “All” records into a digital format and provide a customized storage 
system that is maintained in the “cloud”.  Toshiba was going to provide us with some cost 
estimates. In addition, this could be done in phases and Toshiba would train staff on how to 
scan the documents and how to store them. 

d) Attended the American Legion meeting on Thursday, July 10, 2025 
e) Water main break – 532 East 11th Street.  Crews successfully excavated the area and made 

the repairs.  Had difficulty in located the necessary valves to shut of the 6” water line so the 
repairs were made “hot” or with water still flowing at full pressure. 

f) Met with representatives from the Flatonia Youth Sports & Events regarding improvements 
in 7-Acre Park.  Those improvements would be: 

1) Installation of a water fountain next to the restrooms 
2) Placement of a scoreboard 
3) Running for electricity for the scoreboard and possible future lighting system for 

the soccer field. 
4) Concrete pad that would be used for setting up food and drinks or even possibly 

bringing in a food truck/trailer. 
5) Possibly constructing pads for the bleachers that have been purchased 

 
Note: The water fountain, scoreboard and bleachers have been purchased by the FYSE through 
an LCRA Grant that they received.  
 

g) Attended the Lions Club Meeting and was approved as a new member to the Lion’s Club. 

99



h) Missed the July 17th Rotary Club Meeting due to family emergency.  Planning to fill out an 
application to the Rotary Club. 

i) Prepared for the Special Planning Commission Meeting on July 21 and the Special City 
Council Meeting on July 22, 2025. 

j) Prepared for the Council Budget Workshop on July 29, 2025 
k) Submitted the application to the LCRA Community Grant Program. The application process 

opened July 1, 2025 and closed July 31, 2025.  
l) Had a budget meeting with the Chief of Flatonia Fire and Rescue. 
m) In person meeting with George Lane from Explore Texas.  We discussed a web page that 

his company has created called “exploreflatonia.com” that is part of the Explore Texas 
website.  Provided some information on the costs and about revenue that would come to the 
City or Chamber based on the selling of ads. 

n) Prepared for the Planning and Zoning Meeting on August 4, 2025 at 6:00pm. 
 

Financial Report:  
a) Le Ann worked diligently on the mid-year budget review, bank reconciliation, and sales tax 

reports. She will begin budget talks with the City Manager and department heads later this 
month. 

b) The auditor placed us in their queue. The projected start for the Fiscal Year 2023 audit is 
late July. 

c) Assisted in preparing the Draft FY 2025-2026 Budget that was reviewed by the City Council 
at the July 29th Budget Workshop. 

 
CITY OF FLATONIA CURRENT PROJECT LIST 

a) Flatonia Youth Sports Association was awarded the LCRA grant. They have begun their 
soccer field project and will work with Jack to coordinate the necessary items from the City. 

b) A grant update meeting was held on July 17, 2025 at 10:00am – no real updates except for 
Staff and consultant team working on various documents needed for the various projects 
especially the TPW trail grant. 

c) Next Grant update meeting will be on July 20, 2025 at 10:00am 
 
24-9174 FLATONIA HMGP DR-4781 AND DR-798 
The grant application has been submitted. The project is to add an emergency generator at the police 
station/fire department building. 
 
TEXAS PARKS & WILDLIFE 

a) No real updates at this time 
b) The City of Flatonia received confirmation by email on May 22nd that the grant has been 

awarded. 
c) Staff have been responding to various emails from TPWD regarding required documents 

for the Grant Process. 
d) Langford Community Management is working on an environmental questionnaire that is 

required for the grant. 
e) The project is to add connecting trails between 7 Acre Park and McWhirter Park and to pave 

the trail.  
 

100



 
 
23-8858 FLATONIA GLO MOD 24-065-159-F074 

• No real updates at this time. 
• We received confirmation of grant award in the amount of $3,022,400. A kickoff meeting was 

held with representatives from the GLO, BEFCO, Langford Community Management and city 
staff on Tuesday, June 4, 2025.  The Kickoff Meeting was mainly to go over the various aspects 
of the contract with GLO. The projects included are as follows: 

a) Water Well 13 (to be located at Water Plant #3 and replace well 10) 
b) HWY 90\Railroad Bore\Converse Water Line (Includes RR Bore) 
c) Interconnect Water Line Improvements (Includes RR Bore) 

• The City of Flatonia has received a notice from Langford Community Management that the 
GLO has given the “green light” to move forward with the project(s). 

 
23-8710 FLATONIA 23/24 TXCDBG CDV23-0369  
There are no changes to report for this grant. The project is to replace booster pumps at Water Plant #3.  

101



 

Discussion 
Agenda #  
 

1 

Title:     
Review and discussion on HB 4765 which was passed by the 89th Texas 
Legislature regarding “Code Enforcement”. 

Summary: HB 4765 was passed by the 89th Texas Legislature and signed into law on 
June 20, 2025 with an effective date of September 1, 2025.   H.B. No. 4765 amends the 
Occupations Code to establish clearer definitions and regulations for code enforcement 
officers and code enforcement officers in training in Texas. The bill introduces new 
definitions, including "code enforcement officer" and "code enforcement officer in 
training," specifying that these individuals must work for the state or a political 
subdivision and engage in code enforcement. Additionally, it defines the Texas 
Commission of Licensing and Regulation as the overseeing body. The bill also clarifies 
that individuals are not required to register if they are already licensed under another law 
and outlines the eligibility criteria for obtaining a certificate of registration, which 
includes experience, examination, and application fees. 
 
Furthermore, the bill stipulates that a certificate of registration must be renewed 
biennially and can be denied if the applicant has had a previous certificate or license 
revoked for unprofessional conduct or related issues. The language throughout the bill 
has been updated to replace "person" with "individual" in various sections to ensure 
consistency and clarity. The changes aim to enhance the regulatory framework governing 
code enforcement in Texas, ensuring that only qualified individuals are recognized as 
code enforcement officers. 
 
Proposed Motion(s): 
 

□ I move to _________________________________________________________ 
 

□ I move to _________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

  
Maker of Motion: _____________________             Second: _____________________ 
 
 
Laney: __________   Homan: _________ Kocian: ________   Brazill: _________ 
 
Mayor Seale: _________   Mayor Pro Tem Sears: ________ 
 

102



 
 

Title:    
Consider and take appropriate action on the annual contract with no changes for Flatonia 
Fire and Rescue. 
 
Discussion:  HB 4765 defines the eligibility requirements for becoming “Licensed” as under 
code enforcement under the Texas Commission of Licensing and Regulation (TDLR). 
 
Sec.1952.102. ELIGIBILITY TO REGISTER AS CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER. To be 
eligible to receive a certificate of registration as a code enforcement officer, an individual must: 

1) Submit an application in the manner and on the form prescribed by the executive 
(meaning Executive Director of Texas Commission of Licensing and Regulation); 

2) Have at least one year of full-time experience in the field of code enforcement; 
3) Pass the examination required by the department; 
4) Pay the application fee; 
5) Meet any other requirements prescribed by HB 4765 or by commission rule 
 

HB 4765 further also defines a “code enforcement officer in training” meaning an individual 
who: 

a) works for this state or a political subdivision of this state; and 
b) engages in code enforcement under the supervision of a code enforcement officer 

registered under this chapter. 
 

HB 4765 does provide for an exemption: 
  
Sec.A1952.00: EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION. An individual is not required to be 
registered under this chapter if the individual 

(1) is required to be licensed or registered under another law of this state; and 
(2) engages in code enforcement under that license or registration. 

 
How does HB 4765 apply to the City of Flatonia?  First, more information needs to be obtained 
from TDLR regarding the one year of full-time experience and if that one year of full-time 
experience does need to be under the supervision of a registered code enforcement officer.  
Further details would also be needed regarding the “full-time” experience and if that means 
8am-5pm, Monday thru Friday?  Clarification is needed on these questions before being able to 
outline the steps forward because it is unclear if the 2 years of experience that current city staff 
has would qualify?  If the 2 years of experience does not qualify because those 2 years of 
experience have not been under a registered code enforcement officer, then the following steps 
would need to be taken: 

(1)  Apply to be a “code enforcement officer in training 
(2)  Obtain one year of full-time experience under a registered code enforcement officer 
(3)  Apply for the required examination and pay the application fee (applicant would be 

notified that they are eligible to take the exam) 
(4)  Pass the required examination 
(5)  Apply to be a registered code enforcement officer 

103



H.B.ANo.A4765

AN ACT

relating to the regulation of code enforcement officers and code

enforcement officers in training.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 1952.001, Occupations Code, is amended

by amending Subdivisions (2) and (2-a) and adding Subdivision (2-b)

to read as follows:

(2)AA"Code enforcement officer" means an individual

who:

(A)AAworks for [agent of] this state or a

political subdivision of this state; and

(B)AA[who] engages in code enforcement.

(2-a)AA"Code enforcement officer in training" means an

individual who:

(A)AAworks for this state or a political

subdivision of this state; and

(B)AAengages in code enforcement under the

supervision of a code enforcement officer registered under this

chapter.

(2-b)AA"Commission" means the Texas Commission of

Licensing and Regulation.

SECTIONA2.AASection 1952.002, Occupations Code, is amended

to read as follows:

Sec.A1952.002.AAEXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION. An individual

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

1

104

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.001&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.002&Date=5/30/2025


[A person] is not required to be registered under this chapter if

the individual [person]:

(1)AAis required to be licensed or registered under

another law of this state; and

(2)AAengages in code enforcement under that license or

registration.

SECTIONA3.AASection 1952.003, Occupations Code, is amended

to read as follows:

Sec.A1952.003.AAEMPLOYMENT OF REGISTERED INDIVIDUAL

[PERSON] NOT REQUIRED.AAThis state or a political subdivision of

this state may engage in code enforcement without employing an

individual [a person] registered under this chapter, if the

individual who is engaging in code enforcement for the state or

political subdivision is exempt from registration under Section

1952.002.

SECTIONA4.AASection 1952.101, Occupations Code, is amended

to read as follows:

Sec.A1952.101.AAREGISTRATION REQUIRED. Except as permitted

by Section 1952.002, an individual [a person] may not claim to be a

code enforcement officer or use the title "code enforcement

officer" unless the individual [person] holds a valid certificate

of registration under this chapter.

SECTIONA5.AASection 1952.102, Occupations Code, is amended

to read as follows:

Sec.A1952.102.AAELIGIBILITY TO REGISTER AS CODE ENFORCEMENT

OFFICER. To be eligible to receive a certificate of registration as

a code enforcement officer, an individual [a person] must:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

H.B.ANo.A4765

2

105

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.003&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.002&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.101&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.002&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.102&Date=5/30/2025


(1)AAsubmit an application in the manner and on the form

prescribed by the executive director;

(2)AAhave at least one year of full-time experience in

the field of code enforcement;

(3)AApass the examination required by the department;

(4)AApay the application fee[, examination, and

registration fees]; and

(5)AAmeet any other requirements prescribed by this

chapter or by commission rule.

SECTIONA6.AASection 1952.103(c), Occupations Code, is

amended to read as follows:

(c)AAA code enforcement officer in training may engage in

code enforcement under the supervision of a [registered] code

enforcement officer registered under this chapter.

SECTIONA7.AASection 1952.104, Occupations Code, is amended

to read as follows:

Sec.A1952.104.AARECIPROCAL REGISTRATION. On proper

application, the department shall issue a certificate of

registration to a license holder or registrant of another state

that has requirements for the licensing or registration of a code

enforcement officer that are at least substantially equivalent to

those of this state.

SECTIONA8.AASection 1952.105(a), Occupations Code, is

amended to read as follows:

(a)AAA certificate of registration issued under this chapter

expires on the second anniversary of the date of issuance and may be

renewed biennially on proper application, payment of the required

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

H.B.ANo.A4765

3

106

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.103&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.104&Date=5/30/2025
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.105&Date=5/30/2025


renewal fee, and [on] completion of the continuing education

requirements prescribed by commission rule.

SECTIONA9.AASection 1952.151(a), Occupations Code, is

amended to read as follows:

(a)AAThe commission or executive director may deny an

individual’s [a person’s] application for a certificate of

registration if the individual’s [person’s] certificate or license

to engage in code enforcement or a related profession has been

revoked by another licensing entity in this state or another state

for:

(1)AAunprofessional conduct;

(2)AAfraud, deceit, or negligence; or

(3)AAmisconduct in the practice of code enforcement or

a related profession.

SECTIONA10.AAThis Act takes effect September 1, 2025.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

H.B.ANo.A4765

4

107

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=OC&Value=1952.151&Date=5/30/2025


______________________________ ______________________________

AAAAPresident of the Senate Speaker of the HouseAAAAAA

I certify that H.B. No. 4765 was passed by the House on May

15, 2025, by the following vote:AAYeas 122, Nays 18, 2 present, not

voting.

______________________________

Chief Clerk of the HouseAAA

I certify that H.B. No. 4765 was passed by the Senate on May

28, 2025, by the following vote:AAYeas 29, Nays 2.

______________________________

Secretary of the SenateAAAA

APPROVED:AA_____________________

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAADateAAAAAAAAAA

AAAAAAAAAAA_____________________

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAGovernorAAAAAAA

H.B.ANo.A4765

5

108



 

Deliberation 
Agenda #  
 

1 

Title:     
Consider and take appropriate action on a variance request to the 
minimum building setback requirements for Juan Manzano at 309 West 
3rd Street. 

Summary: The applicant is requesting a variance to the minimum side yard setback of 5 
feet. The 5 feet is measured from the side property line.  In this situation it would be the 
side property line between 309 West 3rd Street and 517 West 3rd Street.  The applicant 
would like to construct a carport that would encroach minimum side yard setback of 5 
feet. In the attached Variance Request application, the applicant is stating that the 
columns for the proposed carport would be placed at or very near the side property line. 
The applicant further states that adhering to the 5-foot minimum side yard setback would 
restrict “all” access to the back of the house or yard.    
 
In the application, there is a picture of the house at 309 West 3rd Street that also shows 
the extent of the proposed carport.  The picture also shows that the driveway has been 
widen an additional 25 feet which extends to the property line between 309 and 317 West 
3rd Street. Flatwork such as a driveway or even a parking lot is allowed to be built out to 
the property line and does not have to adhere to the 5’ building setback requirement. The 
picture in the application as well as the additional pictures that have been provided do 
show the double gate that goes into the backyard.   
 
(Please Attached for more discussion) 
 
Proposed Motion(s): 
 

□ I move to approve the variance request to the minimum building setback 
requirement for Juan Manzano at 309 West 3rd Street. ______________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 

□ I move to _________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
  
Maker of Motion: _____________________             Second: _____________________ 
 
 
Laney: __________   Homan: _________ Kocian: ________   Brazill: _________ 
 
Mayor Seale: _________   Mayor Pro Tem Sears: ________ 
 

109



 
 

Title:    
Consider and take appropriate action on a variance request to the minimum building 
setback requirements for Juan Manzano at 309 West 3rd Street. 
 
Discussion: 309 West 3rd Street is in a R-1 Zoning District (Low Density Residential).  The lot 
size requirements and building setback requirements are shown below: 
 

• Minimum Lot Area or size = 7,000 sq ft 
• Minimum Lot Width = 70 feet 
• Minimum Lot Depth = 100 feet 
• Minimum Front Yard Setback = 25 feet (measured from the property line) 
• Minimum Side Yard Setback = 5 feet (measured from the property line) – 25 feet if it is 

a corner or streetside lot 
 

One of the main purposes of the 5’ minimum side yard setback along a common property line is 
to assist with meeting the fire code requirement of 10’ between structures.  However, roof eaves 
or overhangs are allowed to encroach the 5’ side setback or the 25’ front yard setback but no 
more than 2 feet. 
 
In reviewing variance requests the City Council needs to look at or consider the following 
sections of the Flatonia Code of Ordinances: 
 

Chapter 10 – ‘Subdivision Regulations’, Article 10.02 – “Subdivision Ordinance”, 
Division 14 – “Changes and Variations”, Section 10.02.475 “Variances” states the 
following:     

(a) Hardship: Where the city council finds that extraordinary hardships due to 
engineering considerations may result from strict compliance with the provisions 
of this article, it may vary the regulations so that substantial justice may be done 
and the public interest secured; provided that such variation will not have the 
effect of nullifying the intent and purpose of the general community plan of these 
requirements. 

(b) Conditions: In granting variances and modifications, the city council may require 
such conditions as will, in its judgment, secure substantially the objectives of the 
standards or requirements so varied or modified. 

 
14A – Zoning Ordinance under Variance Procedure also provides Review and Evaluation 
Criteria for consideration of a variance request: 
 
Review and Evaluation Criteria. 
Basic Criteria: The City Council may grant a Variance if it makes affirmative findings of 
fact on each of the following criteria: 

a. The Zoning Regulations applicable to the property do not allow for a 
reasonable use. 

 

110

https://ecode360.com/41072879#41072879


 
b. The plight of the owner of the property is due to unique circumstances existing 

on the property, and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of 
the property and are not merely financial and are not due to or the result of 
general conditions in the zoning district in which the property is located. 

 
c. The variance will not alter the character of the area adjacent to the property, 

will not impair the use of adjacent conforming property and will not impair the 
purposes or regulations to the Zoning District in which the property is located. 

 
When looking at the specified review and evaluation criteria in 14A – Zoning Ordinance, Staff 
has the following comments or findings: 
 

a) The Zoning Regulations applicable to the property do not allow for reasonable use.  
“NO” The zoning regulations and the 5’ side yard setback do allow for reasonable use 
and do not restrict the use of the property.  Adhering to the 5’side yard setback does not 
prohibit use of the property.  Access to the back of the house or backyard would not be 
restricted if the support poles were placed on the 5’ setback line.  Unless the applicant 
means vehicular access, however it is unclear if that would be restricted based on the 
photos of the property. 
 

b) The plight of the owner of the property is due to unique circumstances existing on the 
property, and the unique circumstances were not created by the owner of the property 
and are not merely financial and are not due to or the result of general conditions in the 
zoning district in which the property is located.  “NO” There are no unique 
circumstances existing on the property and the unique circumstances of encroaching into 
the 5’ setback was created by the owner of the property.  It is a self-imposed hardship. 

 
c) The variance will not alter the character of the area adjacent to the property, will not 

impair the use of adjacent conforming property and will not impair the purposes or 
regulations to the Zoning District in which the property is located.  At the time of this 
request, it does not appear that the variance would impair the use of the adjacent 
property at 317 West 3rd Street and would not be detrimental to the purposes or 
regulations of the Zoning District with the exception that it is the approval to 
encroachment of the 5’ building setback.  Meaning that it possibly could set a precedent, 
however, each variance request has to be looked at independently.   

 
Additional information regarding variance requests from 14A – Zoning Ordinance: 
 
G. Lapse of Variance. Where a variance is granted by the Council and no building or 
structure is started pursuant to such variance within six months after the date of the 
hearing, thereon said variance becomes null and void and of no force or effect. 
H. Revocation. Upon violation of any applicable provision of this ordinance, or, if 
granted subject to conditions, a Variance shall be revoked after thirty (30) days’ written 
notification to the owner of the use or property to the Variance. 
 

111

https://ecode360.com/41072880#41072880
https://ecode360.com/41072894#41072894


 
I. Variance to Run With Land or Structure. Unless pertaining to off-street parking and 
loading regulations or otherwise specified at the time a Variance is granted, a Variance 
shall run with the land and shall continue to be valid upon a change of ownership of the 
site or structure to which it applies. 
 
Staff Recommendation: While the proposed structure is a carport and will be made of metal, 
Staff does not agree with the statement in the application that “all” access to the back of the 
house/yard will be restricted.  In observing the property and looking at the pictures of 309 
West 3rd Street it is apparent that “all” access to the double gates will not be restricted due 
to meeting the 5’ setback requirement especially for an individual or lawn equipment.  It 
should also be noted that in looking at the pictures of 309 West 3rd Street, one can see the 
footings for the metal support posts are already in place making it a possible financial 
burden to adhere to the 5-foot minimum setback which is self-imposed. 
 
This is a “self-imposed” hardship and not a hardship that is being caused by a unique 
characteristic of the property or the zoning regulations.  For that reason, Staff does not 
recommend approval of the variance request. 

112

https://ecode360.com/41072895#41072895


113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



309 West 3rd Street 

121



 
 

Deliberation 
Agenda #  
 

2 

Title:     
Consider and take appropriate action on the annual contract with no 
changes for Flatonia Fire and Rescue. 

Summary: The current contract has been attached for your review.  The contract between 
the City of Flatonia and the Flatonia Fire and Recue is to be reviewed or reaffirmed every 
August. 
 
 
Proposed Motion(s): 
 

□ I move to approve the annual contract with no changes for the Flatonia Fire and 
Rescue. 
 

□ I move to _________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 
_________________________________________________________________ 

 
  
Maker of Motion: _____________________             Second: _____________________ 
 
 
Laney: __________   Homan: _________ Kocian: ________   Brazill: _________ 
 
Mayor Seale: _________   Mayor Pro Tem Sears: ________ 
 

122



123



124



125



126



127



Deliberation 
Agenda #  

3 

Title: 
Consider and take appropriate action on renewing Promotion and 
Tourism contracts with the Flatonia Chamber of Commerce, EA Arnim 
Museum and Archives and Flatonia Special Projects. 

Summary: Attached are the current individual contracts for Promotion and Tourism 
between the City of Flatonia and the Flatonia Chamber of Commerce; EA Arnim 
Museum & Archives; and Flatonia Special Projects (Rail Park).  Staff does 
not have any recommended changes or additions.  The term of these contracts would 
be from October 1, 2025 through September 30, 2026.  They are renewed on a yearly 
basis. 

Proposed Motion(s): 

□ I move to approve renewing the Promotion and Tourism Contracts with the
Flatonia Chamber of Commerce, EA Arnim Museum and Archives and Flatonia
Special Projects.

□ I move to _________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________

Maker of Motion: _____________________   Second: _____________________ 

Laney: __________   Homan: _________ Kocian: ________   Brazill: _________ 

Mayor Seale: _________   Mayor Pro Tem Sears: ________ 

128



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

129



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

130



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

131



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

132



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

133



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

134



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

135



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

136



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

137



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

138



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

139



Docusign Envelope ID: F773CDBE-3A59-4155-8DE6-AEF47740BEF7

140



Deliberation 
Agenda #  

4 

Title:     
Consider and take appropriate action the “Project Listings” for the 
unexpended funds of $97,000. 

Summary: Approximately $97,000 within the current budget that was not placed towards 
the Sludge Removal Project.  Recommendations for use of those funds are shown on the 
Priority Listing of Projects. 

(Please Attached for more discussion) 

Proposed Motion(s): 

□ I move to approve the “Project Listings” for the unexpended funds of $97,000.

□ I move to _________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________

Maker of Motion: _____________________   Second: _____________________ 

Laney: __________   Homan: _________ Kocian: ________   Brazill: _________ 

Mayor Seale: _________   Mayor Pro Tem Sears: ________ 

141



 
 

Title:    
Consider and take appropriate action on the “Project Listings” for the unexpended funds 
of $97,000. 
 
Discussion:  

Priority List of Projects 
(For $97,000) 

 
1. New 5-Ton AC Unit for the Chamber of Commerce Building = $5,688.00 (see 

attached quote from South Central Electric) – already moving forward with this 
item.  The unit being replaced is in disrepair. 

 
Subtotal = $91,332.00 
 

2. Water Truck for the Utilities/Public Works Department = $40,000.00 
 
Subtotal = $51,332.00 

 
3. Server for the Police Department = $15,000.00 

 
Subtotal = $36,3320.00 
 

4. City Council Chambers Audio/Visual Improvements = $5,000.00 
• 75” Smart TV/Monitor for the backwall (behind the City Council) = 

$1,200 
• 2- 60” Smart TV/Monitor for the sidewalls = $1,200.00 
• Laptop for City Manager be used for remote work, agenda presentations to 

the City Council and other Committees/Commissions = $1,200.00 
• TV/Monitor Wall mounts = $130.00 
• Miscellaneous / IT work = $1,270.00 

Subtotal = $31,332.00 
5. Maintenance at the American Legion Hall = $15,0000 

• Replacement of the concrete steps and handrails for the door to the kettle 
room at the back of the building 

• Cleaning of the outside of the American Legion Hall and possibly some 
painting 

• Other general maintenance items – such as the removal of the large Ash 
Tree near the main entrance to the American Legion Hall.  The American 
Legion has requested the removal of the large Ash Tree.  It is going to be a 
pretty big job and may be best to have a contractor do the removal (no 
quotes at this time). 

142



• Securing of the siding around the outside of the American Legion Hall 
 

Subtotal = $16,332.00 
 

Other Thoughts 
• Purchase of a new AC unit to replace one of the older units at the 

American Legion Hall = Estimate for a new 10-Ton unit would be 
$17,570.00 or $19,735.00 with Electric Strip Heating.  The current heat 
source for the American Legion Hall is a stand-alone propane gas heater 
(furnace) that ties into the air handler of the AC System. 

• Purchase of 2 digital handheld radios for the Police Department = 
$8,461.72 to begin the transition to the new LCRA 700/800 MHz radio 
system. 

• Improvements to HC Parking around the City that are within the rights of 
way of roads (estimates need to be obtained). 

• Improvements to the basketball court or other possible improvements to 
the Parks (estimates need to be obtained). 

 
There are a number of priorities for the City, however the 5 listed would be top priorities at this 
time, with some flexibility to address a few other items.  In regard to City owned properties and 
HVAC Systems such as the Civic Center, American Legion Hall, Post Office and City Hall, it is 
staff’s intention to discuss with local vendors about having a routine maintenance schedule and 
life expectancy schedule.  As the City has seen with replacement of one of the units at City Hall 
and now with the replacement of a unit at the Civic Center, these are fairly large purchase items, 
especially when looking at replacing the large units at the American Legion Hall.  It would be in 
the City’s best interest to have regular service and maintenance on these units as well as an 
opinion on life expectancy.  The this would help with budgeting for those items.   

143



 
 
 
 
 
 
AUGUST 7, 2025 
 
CITY OF FLATONIA 
CIVIC CENTER 
FLATONIA, TEXAS 
78941 
 
SOUTH CENTRAL ELECTRIC IS OFFERING TWO OPTIONS FOR THE CIVIC CENTER  AIR 
CONDITIONING SYSTEM. ALL OPTIONS INCLUDE: 
 
❖ FREON RECLAMATION. 
❖ OLD SYSTEM REMOVAL 
❖ NEW SYSTEM INSTALLATION, WITH A RECONNECT TO EXISTING DUCTWORK, 

DRAIN,REFRIGERATION COPPER TUBING,HIGH AND LOW VOLTAGE ELECTRICAL. 
❖ NEW PROGRAMMABLE THERMOSTAT. 
❖ DISPOSAL OF EXISTING SYSTEM AND AREA CLEAN UP. 
❖ SHIPPING. 

 
OPTION 1: TRANE’S  5 TON CONDENSER AND COIL ONLY 13.8 SEER. 5 YEAR COMPRESSOR 
AND ONE YEAR PARTS AND YEAR LABOR WARRANTY FOR THE INSTALLED PRICE OF  

$5,688.00 
 
OPTION 2: TRANE’S 5 TON COMPLETE SYSTEM 13.8 SEER. 5 YEAR COMPRESSOR AND ONE 
YEAR PARTS AND YEAR LABOR WARRANTY FOR THE INSTALLED PRICE OF  

$8,150.00 
 
 
 
ALL PRICING CAN BE HELD FOR 21 DAYS, PLEASE CALL WITH ANY QUESTIONS. 
 
CHEERS, 
 
 
 
 
 
SEAN MASEK 
 

144


	2025.07.08 Council Minutes.pdf
	Call to Order
	Mayor Seale called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

	2025.07.22 Council Minutes.pdf
	Call to Order
	Mayor Pro Tem Sears called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

	2025.07.29 Council Minutes.pdf
	Call to Order
	Mayor Seale called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.




